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ADDENDUM NO. 2   STATE OF DELAWARE OMB/DFM 
       Attorney Generals File Storage Room Renovations 
       900 North King Street 

      Wilmington, DE 19801 
 

       R G Architects 
200 West Main Street 
Middletown, DE 19709 
Phone: 302-376-8100 (phone) 
Email: jerry@rgarchitects.net 

 
BIDS DUE:    Thursday, November 15, 2018 at 1:00 p.m. 
LOCATION:    THOMAS COLLINS BUILDING 
       Division of Facilities Management Office  
       540 S. DuPont Highway, Suite 1 (Third Floor) 
       Dover, Delaware 19901 

 

NOTICE TO ALL BIDDERS 

1.0 GENERAL NOTES: 

1.1 Bidders are hereby notified that this Addendum shall be and hereby becomes part of their 
Contract Documents, and shall be attached to the Project Manual for this project. 

1.2 The following items are intended to revise and clarify the Drawings and Project Manual, 
and shall be included by the Bidder in their proposal. 

1.3 Bidders shall verify that their Sub-bidders are in full receipt of the information contained 
herein. 

1.4 Contractors are encouraged to keep an eye on their email accounts during the bidding 
period for such updates.  

1.5 Substitutions:  If a specification lists one product manufacturer as well as listing “or 
equal”, the contractor is not obligated to submit for substitution prior to bid for that item.  
However, the contractor will still be responsible to Meet or Exceed ALL the requirements 
of that product during the shop drawing review process as per the specifications. If the 
product substituted as an equal does not meet ALL of the requirements of the 
specifications, as determined by the Architect, the Contractor is obligated to provide the 
specified product at no additional cost to the project. 
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2.0 Revisions to the SPECIFICATIONS 

2.1 Added Specification “Carpet Tile - 09 6810” 
 

2.2 Metal Storage Shelving 10 56 13, 2.1 – Add the following Manufacturers as acceptable 
companies, see note 1.5 of this addendum above; 

A. Mayline 
B. Spacesaver 
  

2.3 High Density Mobile Storage Units 10 56 26, 2.1 – Add the following Manufacturers as 
acceptable companies, see note 1.5 of this addendum above; 

A. Mayline  
B. Spacesaver 

 
 

3.0  Revisions to the DRAWINGS 

3.1 Drawing A11-3:  The movable shelving heights have been reduced to 76-1/4”.  The static 
shelving heights remain the same. Refer to clouded areas on the drawing. 

3.2 Drawing E11-01: Sheet Note 8; Delete current note and Replace with the following: 

8.  Disconnect and remove existing paging speaker system in its entirety including 
speakers, backboxes, wiring and appurtenances. This system is abandoned. 

4.0 Questions 

Q.1 In the existing corridor to the north, the new and existing lights shown on drawing E11-2 
do not match what is shown on A11-3.  Which drawing should we use for our take off? 

A.1 The correct number and types of lights, including exit signs, are shown on 
electrical drawing E11-2. 

Q.2 There is a spec section Institutional Casework, does this apply to this project?  There is a 
spec for Interior Architectural Woodwork and drawings imply plastic laminate.  Please 
advise? 

A.2 Specification Section 12 35 50 can be deleted.. 

Q.3 Addendum # 1 question #9's answer tells us the file cabinets are Mechanically operated.  Is 
this a typo and should read Manually?  Please advise? 

A.3 See specification Section 105626 - High-Density Mobile Storage Units 
(Mechanically Assisted Movement) . 

Q.4 Section 105613 2.5A/ Section 105626 1.5.E---- Will the Owner accept choice of 
manufacturer’s standard color finishes to be at least 8 choices, minimum? 

A.4 Yes, we will.  

Q.5 Section 105626-2.3.A.1--- Will the Owner accept ASTM steel type 1018 as well as type 
1045 , provided they meet standards for 1000 lbs per foot load bearing and L/700 maximum 
deflection? 

A.5 No, we will not.  
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Q.6 Section 105626-2.3.C.2---Will the Owner accept a minimum carriage height of 4.5 inches 
to house, without projecting into shelving, the required 5 inch diameter wheel system 
required? 

A.6 No, we will not.  

Q.7 Section 105626 -2.3.D.3---Will the Owner accept industry standard 3500 lbs wheel load 
bearing rating, well above rating required for moveable carriages loaded at 1000 lbs. per 
running foot maximum? 

A.7 No, we will not.  

Q.8 Is a temporary toilet required? 

A.8. No, there is one across the hall that can be utilized. 

Q.9 Please confirm that the contractor is not responsible for CAD updates and transparencies. 

A.9 As part of the closeout document submission, the Contractor shall provide red-line 
markups that accurately document as-built conditions.  The Architect and Engineer 
shall prepare the final CAD files based on this information.  Transparencies are 
NOT required.  

Q.10 Demolition note “O” on drawing A11-2 alludes to new room signage.  Is new room signage 
required? If so, please provide a spec section and schedule. 

A.10 New signage is not required at this time.  However, existing signs shall be carefully 
removed and given over to the owner prior to new painting. 

Q.11 What does the bold line at the entrance to Clerk’s Office 101 represent?  Is this a gate? 
Please refer to 3/A11-2. 

A.11 It represents the separation between Carpet and EVCT. The finished flooring for 
Clerks Office 101 should be “B” for carpet (see room finish legend on drawing 
A11-2), and not “D”. See attached Specification “Carpet Tile 09 6810”.  

 Q.12 2/A11-2 has notes that refer to a new platform for the file storage system. Please provide 
sections and/or details showing the platform construction. 

 A.12 The platform shall be constructed as specified in section 10 56 26. 
Specifically refer to section 2.3, B. “Floor and Ramp” 

Q.13 2/A11-2 states to embed guides for the file storage system.  Are these guides embedded in 
the new platform or in the existing concrete slab?  

 A.13 The rails are surface mounted to the existing concrete slab. They then 
become embedded by the new finished flooring and plywood platform. 

Q.14 A.8 of addendum #1 states that concrete patching and leveling is required.  I don’t see any 
reference to concrete patching or leveling on the drawings.  Please clarify.  

 A.14 When the existing finished flooring is removed from the concrete slab the 
flooring contractor shall patch and repair the existing sub-straight as required to 
install their new flooring.  That is the extent of the patching and repairing. 
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 Q.15 Specification section 10 5626, section 2.3, H Accessories: has the word “Optional” in it.  
Are items 1. a., b., and c. optional?  

 A.15 No. The “a. Mechanical carriage safety sweep and brake”, the “b. Dual 
aisle safety lock”, and the “c. Range Finder” are ALL REQUIRED. Provide the 
location and quantity of these items as recommended by the system manufacturer 
based on the shelving plan shown on the drawings. 

Q.16 Drawing E11-01:  Sheet Notes 1 and 2 say the same thing but declare differing quantities 
for floor outlet work.  Which note is correct?   

 A.16 Note 1 is flagged to the Legal File Storage Area to the left of column line 
3, while Note 2 is flagged to the area to the right of column line 2. There is a total 
of 8 + 10 = 18 floor outlets that are addressed in these 2 areas. 

Q.17 (Referencing Q.16 above) Is the intent that this work will be paid for by the contract 
allowance or shall this work be included in our bid outside of the allowance?  

 A.17 This work is included in the base bid and not to be included in any 
allowance. 

Q.18 1.5, D. a.  Please confirm the optional dual aisle safety locking mechanism is not to be 
included in our pricing. 

A.18 This item is required. 

Q.19 Page 9, 2.3, H, 1:  Please confirm the optional accessories listed are not to be included in 
our pricing. 

A.19 The items listed as optional are required. The specification has been corrected.  

Q.20 Please confirm Spacesaver can provide our standard products that meet or exceed the 
performance requirements of the specification.  Current specifications are proprietary to 
Aurora. 

A.20 We cannot confirm that Spacesaver standard products will meet or exceed the 
performance requirements of the specification.  The onus is on the bidder to verify 
they meet the specifications before they submit their bids to the Contractors. 

Q.21 Drawing A11-3:  Please clarify what is being stored on Mobile shelving units MB-1 to 
MB-4.  Details show manufacturer is to select shelving width. 

A.21 The plan is to store Basic Duty Legal Archive Storage Boxes, 15”L x 12”w x 10” 
D. 

 

5.0 ATTACHMENT LIST: 

A. Current Bid Register 

B. Drawing A11-3 

C. Specification “Carpet Tile 09 6810  

 

 

End of Addendum No. 2 
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SECTION 096813 - CARPET TILE 

PART 1 - GENERAL 

1.1 RELATED DOCUMENTS 

A. Drawings and general provisions of the Contract, including General and Supplementary 
Conditions and Division 1 Specification Sections, apply to this Section. 

1.2 SUMMARY 

A. This Section includes modular, tufted walk off carpet tile. 

B. Related Sections include the following: 

1. Division 9 Section Resilient Wall Base and Accessories" for resilient wall base and 
accessories installed with carpet tile. 

1.3 SUBMITTALS 

A. Product Data:  For each type of product indicated.  Include manufacturer's written data on 
physical characteristics, durability, and fade resistance.  Include installation recommendations 
for each type of substrate. 

B. Shop Drawings:  Show the following: 

1. Columns, doorways, enclosing walls or partitions, built-in cabinets, and locations where 
cutouts are required in carpet tiles. 

2. Carpet tile type, color, and dye lot. 
3. Type of installation. 
4. Pattern of installation. 
5. Pattern type, location, and direction, including location of “tops” and “bottoms”  
6. Type, color, and location of insets and borders. 
7. Type, color, and location of edge, transition, and other accessory strips. 
8. Transition details to other flooring materials. 

C. Samples:  For each of the following products and for each color and texture required.  Label 
each Sample with manufacturer's name, material description, color, pattern, and designation 
indicated on Drawings and in schedules. 

1. Carpet Tile:  Full-size Sample. 
2. Exposed Edge, Transition, and other Accessory Stripping:  12-inch- (300-mm-) long 

Samples. 

D. Qualification Data:  For Installer. 
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E. Product Test Reports:  Based on evaluation of comprehensive tests performed by a qualified 
testing agency. 

F. Maintenance Data:  For carpet tiles to include in maintenance manuals.  Include the following: 

1. Methods for maintaining carpet tile, including cleaning and stain-removal products and 
procedures and manufacturer's recommended maintenance schedule. 

2. Precautions for cleaning materials and methods that could be detrimental to carpet tile. 

G. Warranty:  Special warranty specified in this Section. 

1.4 QUALITY ASSURANCE 

A. Installer Qualifications:  An experienced installer who is certified by the Floor Covering 
Installation Board or who can demonstrate compliance with its certification program 
requirements. 

B. Fire-Test-Response Characteristics:  Provide products with the critical radiant flux classification 
indicated in Part 2, as determined by testing identical products per ASTM E 648 by an 
independent testing and inspecting agency acceptable to authorities having jurisdiction. 

C. Pre-Installation Conference:  Conduct conference at Project site to comply with requirements in 
Division 1 Section "Project Management and Coordination." 

1.5 DELIVERY, STORAGE, AND HANDLING 

A. Comply with CRI 104, Section 5, "Storage and Handling." 

1.6 PROJECT CONDITIONS 

A. Comply with CRI 104, Section 7.2, "Site Conditions; Temperature and Humidity" and 
Section 7.12, "Ventilation." 

B. Environmental Limitations:  Do not install carpet tiles until wet work in spaces is complete and 
dry, and ambient temperature and humidity conditions are maintained at the levels indicated for 
Project when occupied for its intended use. 

1.7 WARRANTY 

A. Special Warranty for Carpet Tiles:  Manufacturer's standard form in which manufacturer agrees 
to repair or replace components of carpet tile installation that fail in materials or workmanship 
within specified warranty period. 

1. Warranty does not include deterioration or failure of carpet tile due to unusual traffic, 
failure of substrate, vandalism, or abuse. 
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2. Failures include, but are not limited to, more than 10 percent loss of face fiber, edge 
raveling, snags, runs, loss of tuft bind strength, dimensional stability, excess static 
discharge, and delamination. 

3. Warranty Period:  10 years from date of Substantial Completion. 

1.8 EXTRA MATERIALS 

A. Furnish extra materials described below, before installation begins, that match products 
installed and that are packaged with protective covering for storage and identified with labels 
describing contents. 

1. Carpet Tile:  Full-size units equal to 5 percent of amount installed for each type indicated, 
but not less than 10 sq. yd.  

PART 2 - PRODUCTS 

2.1 Basis-of-Design Product:  The design for the product identified is based on the product named.  
The use of a trade name and/or suppliers name and address in the specifications is to indicate a 
possible source of the product and a standard of quality. Products of the same type from other 
sources shall not be excluded, provided they possess like physical and functional and aesthetic 
characteristics.   Refer to Division 1, “Product Requirements” for process to obtain approval of 
other products.   

 

2.2 CARPET – CP-1 (Color-1) 

A. Manufacturers: Basis-of-Design Product:  Subject to compliance with requirements, provide 
Shaw, #59584 Spectrum, Color:  83750 Two Tone (Color Selection to be Verified through 
Submittals After Bid) or a comparable product by one of the following:  

1. Mannington Commercial 
2. Interface 
3. Bentley  
4. Crossley, A Tandus Company 
5. Atlas 
6. Collins & Aikman 

B. Fiber Content:  100 percent nylon 6, 6. 

C. Fiber Type:  ECO Solution Q Nylon 

D. Pile Characteristic:  Multi-level patterned loop. 

E. Pile Thickness:  0.115 inches for finished carpet per ASTM D 6859. 

F. Stitches:  8 stitches per inch. 
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G. Gage:  1/12 ends per inch. 

H. Tufted Weight:  20 oz./sq. yd. 

I. Primary Backing:  Synthetic. 

J. Secondary Backing:  Ecoworx Tile.  

K. Backcoating:  Manufacturer's standard material. 

L. Backing System:  Ecoworx. 

M. Width:  24” x 24” 

N. Applied Soil-Resistance Treatment:  SSP Shaw Soil Protection. 

O. Antimicrobial Treatment:  Manufacturer's standard material. 

P. Performance Characteristics:  As follows: 

1. Critical Radiant Flux Classification:  Not less than 0.45 W/sq. cm. 
2. Dry Breaking Strength:  Not less than 100 lbf (445 N) per ASTM D 2646. 
3. Tuft Bind:  Not less than 5 lbf (22 N)] per ASTM D 1335. 
4. Delamination:  Not less than 3.5 lbf/in. (15 N/mm) per ASTM D 3936. 
5. Resistance to Insects:  Comply with AATCC 24. 
6. Colorfastness to Crocking:  Not less than 4, wet and dry, per AATCC 165. 
7. Colorfastness to Light:  Not less than 4 after 40 AFU (AATCC fading units) per 

AATCC 16, Option E. 
8. Antimicrobial Activity:  Not less than 2-mm halo of inhibition for gram-positive bacteria; 

not less than 1-mm halo of inhibition for gram-negative bacteria; no fungal growth; per 
AATCC 174. 

9. Electrostatic Propensity:  Less than 3.5 kV per AATCC 134. 
10. Environmental Requirements:  Provide carpet that complies with testing and product 

requirements of Carpet and Rug Institute's "Green Label Plus" program. 
 

Q. Installation Method:  Monolithic. 
. 

2.3 INSTALLATION ACCESSORIES 

A. Trowelable Leveling and Patching Compounds:  Latex-modified, hydraulic-cement-based 
formulation provided or recommended by carpet tile manufacturer. 

B. Adhesives:  Water-resistant, mildew-resistant, nonstaining, pressure-sensitive type to suit 
products and subfloor conditions indicated, that complies with flammability requirements for 
installed carpet tile and is recommended by carpet tile manufacturer for releasable installation. 
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PART 3 - EXECUTION 

3.1 EXAMINATION 

A. Examine substrates, areas, and conditions, with Installer present, for compliance with 
requirements for maximum moisture content, alkalinity range, installation tolerances, and other 
conditions affecting carpet tile performance.  Examine carpet tile for type, color, pattern, and 
potential defects. 

B. Concrete Subfloors:  Verify that concrete slabs comply with ASTM F 710 and the following: 

1. Slab substrates are dry and free of curing compounds, sealers, hardeners, and other 
materials that may interfere with adhesive bond.  Determine adhesion and dryness 
characteristics by performing bond and moisture tests recommended by carpet tile 
manufacturer. 

2. Subfloor finishes comply with requirements specified in Division 3 Section "Cast-in-
Place Concrete" for slabs receiving carpet tile. 

3. Perform recommended preinstallation moisture and alkalinity tests by qualified 
personnel. According to ASTM guidelines.  

4. Subfloors are free of cracks, ridges, depressions, scale, and foreign deposits. 

C. Proceed with installation only after unsatisfactory conditions have been corrected. 

3.2 PREPARATION 

A. General:  Comply with CRI 104, Section 6.2, "Site Conditions; Floor Preparation," and with 
carpet tile manufacturer's written installation instructions for preparing substrates indicated to 
receive carpet tile installation. 

B. Use trowelable leveling and patching compounds, according to manufacturer's written 
instructions, to fill cracks, holes, depressions, and protrusions in substrates.  Fill or level cracks, 
holes and depressions 1/8 inch (3 mm) wide or wider and protrusions more than 1/32 inch (0.8 
mm), unless more stringent requirements are required by manufacturer's written instructions. 

C. Remove coatings, including curing compounds, and other substances that are incompatible with 
adhesives and that contain soap, wax, oil, or silicone, without using solvents.  Use mechanical 
methods recommended in writing by carpet tile manufacturer. 

D. Broom and vacuum clean substrates to be covered immediately before installing carpet tile. 

3.3 INSTALLATION 

A. General:  Comply with CRI 104, Section 14, "Carpet Modules," and with carpet tile 
manufacturer's written installation instructions. 

B. Installation Method:   As recommended in writing by carpet tile manufacturer. 
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C. Establish layout lines for room(s) in accordance with approved shop drawings    

D. Using a recommended nap paint roller, apply adhesive along each base line and all room 
perimeters (each wall), and minimum 30 ft grid unless closer spacing is recommended by 
manufacturer for application. Apply full spread of adhesive under every cut tile and any 
adjoining tile to the cut tile, corridors and areas exposed to high foot traffic and/or heavy rolling 
traffic.    

E. Maintain dye lot integrity.  Do not mix dye lots in same area. 

F. Install in pattern and direction as directed by architect.   

G. Cut and fit carpet tile to butt tightly to vertical surfaces, permanent fixtures, and built-in 
furniture including cabinets, pipes, outlets, edgings, thresholds, and nosings.  Bind or seal cut 
edges as recommended by carpet tile manufacturer. 

H. Extend carpet tile into toe spaces, door reveals, closets, open-bottomed obstructions, removable 
flanges, alcoves, and similar openings. 

I. Maintain reference markers, holes, and openings that are in place or marked for future cutting 
by repeating on finish flooring as marked on subfloor.  Use nonpermanent, nonstaining marking 
device. 

J. Install pattern parallel to walls and borders. 

3.4 CLEANING AND PROTECTION 

A. Perform the following operations immediately after installing carpet tile: 

1. Remove excess adhesive, seam sealer, and other surface blemishes using cleaner 
recommended by carpet tile manufacturer. 

2. Remove yarns that protrude from carpet tile surface. 
3. Vacuum carpet tile using commercial machine with face-beater element. 

B. Protect installed carpet tile to comply with CRI 104, Section 16, "Protection of Indoor 
Installations." 

C. Protect carpet tile against damage from construction operations and placement of equipment and 
fixtures during the remainder of construction period.  Use protection methods indicated or 
recommended in writing by carpet tile manufacturer. 

END OF SECTION 09 6813 
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